
 

 
 

  506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                                            PHONE: 352 360-6727                                                                            
  FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                         FAX: 352 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA  
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD  

September 14, 2023 
6:00 PM 

 
I. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

 
II. ROLL CALL:   

 
III.      MEETING NOTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Meeting notes from August 17, 2023 included for 

review/comment. 
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: NONE 
 

 NEW BUSINESS:  
 
 

A. Recommend and elect Chair and Vice Chair of P&Z to serve 2023/2024 
B. Lakeside Storage II – Variance/Major Site Plan/Unity of Title  (Alternate Keys: 2919469, 

2919507, 2919523, 2919531)  
 

Variance 
The applicant is requesting the following two (2) variances for development of the proposed project: 
(1) requesting the city to waive parking lot landscaping requirements for the RV/boat parking spaces 
and (2) requesting the city to allow installation of an 8” water main as the city does not have a 10” 
water main in this area.   
 
Variance #1 - Staff recommends approval of the variance and approval of the condition that the front 
building perimeter be planted with 3 understory trees, 28 shrubs, and groundcover for every 350 

  Board Members:        Others:     
  Al Goldberg, Chairman    Michael Rankin, LPG  
  Daniel Dicus, Vice Chair    Anita Geraci-Carver, City Attorney 
  Carlisle Burch                 Emily Church, Office Assistant 
  Roger Sines      Sharon Williams, Administrative Manager 
Walter Birriel 
 
 

  



 
square feet of planting area. The planting area would be a 3’ strip. This would be considered 
comparable.   Variance #2 - planning staff defers to the City Engineer and Lake County Fire 
Department. The city engineer does not object to a variance for a fire hydrant 10” main.  The city 
does not have a 10” main within the area. 
  
Major Site Plan 
The subject property is 7.07 acres and consists of four parcels, a northern parcel (Alt Key 2919531), a 
southern parcel (Alt Key 2919469), and two parcels in between (Alt Key 2919523 and Alt Key 
2919507). A single story 781 square foot manufactured office exists on the southern parcel (Alt Key 
2919469). The proposed major site plan is to construct a 93,205 SF storage facility including an 
office for a total of 93,986 square feet on the northern portion of the site, along with associated 
loading, parking, and stormwater management areas. The building sizes proposed to be built are 
76,795 square feet, 6,150 square feet, 6,160 square feet, and 4,100 square feet, along with an office 
and forty-one (41) RV/boat storage spaces. 
 
Unity of Title 
The subject properties proposed for unification are alternate keys 2919531, 2919523, and 2919507. 
Alternate key 2919469 will remain separate for potential future development. There will be shared 
maintenance for a retention pond between the parcels. 

 
 
BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS: 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
This section is reserved for members of the public to bring up matters of concern or opportunities for 
praise. Note: Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114 and the City of Fruitland Park’s Public Participation Policy 
adopted by Resolution 2013-023, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be 
heard on propositions before the Planning and Zoning Board. Pursuant to Resolution 2013-023, public 
comments are limited to three minutes. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 



 

 
 

  506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                                            PHONE: 352 360-6727                                                                            
  FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                         FAX: 352 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA  
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD  

August 17, 2023 
6:00 PM 

 
I. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Invocation led by Sharon Williams, Fruitland 

Park Staff. 
 

II. ROLL CALL:  All members present except Roger Sines & Walter Birriel. 
 

III.      MEETING NOTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Meeting notes from July 20, 2023 included for 
review/comment. Minutes were unanimously approved. 
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: NONE 
 

 NEW BUSINESS:  
 
 

A. The Village at Lake Geneva – Planned Unit Development (PUD) Amendment/Preliminary Plat  
(Alternate Keys: 1284490, 1284503,1284511, 1284805, 1284821, 1771617, 1771625, 3883988)  

 
 PUD Amendment 
 The applicant for the proposed project, Richard Wohlfarth, submitted a PUD amendment and 
Preliminary Plan applications on behalf of the owner, Lake Saunders Groves PUD.  The applicant would 
like to amend Ordinance 2022-012 (first amended and restated Master Development) to include the 
following:  (1) remove reference to a 12.82 acre lake,  (2) reduce density from 3.11 to 2.96, (3) reduce 
units from 420 to 397, (4) increased phasing from two (2) to six (6);  (5) add criteria for 40’ lots X 120’ 
lots to replace 50’ X 120’ lots, (6) delete reference to condominiums, (7) add sidewalks on both sides, 
deleting the 15’ pedestrian path and (8) allow natural landscape buffers to be used in lieu of planted 
buffers. 

  Board Members:        Others:     
  Al Goldberg, Chairman    Michael Rankin, LPG  
  Daniel Dicus, Vice Chair    Anita Geraci-Carver, City Attorney 
  Carlisle Burch                 Emily Church, Office Assistant 
  Roger Sines      Sharon Williams, Administrative Manager 
Walter Birriel 
 
 

  



 
 

Planning Board Meeting Agenda 
August 17, 2023 – Page 2 

  
Preliminary Plan  
The applicant is requesting preliminary plat approval for The Village at Lake Geneva (FKA Lake 
Saunders Grove) for 397 units consisting of single family detached and single family attached 
(townhomes). The applicant is also seeking an amendment to the PUD, Ordinance 2022-12. New 
preliminary plan should reference the most recent plan vice the old Master Development Agreement still 
lists the old master plan. 
Clarification may be required on which alternate key the applicant states should not be included as a part 
of the plat/plan. Per the applicant, approximately 14 acres will be excluded.  City Attorney will need to 
review if there any implications for this situation and provide a review for the PUD Amendment. 
Applicant states that the proposed development will have a master meter for water usage and set 
alternating days for lawn watering.  If well water is used, the development does not plan to charge the 
residents; otherwise, the HOA will receive a bill for city water and residents would pay an equitable 
share. 
Vice Chair Dicus inquired about the change in lot size. Richard Wohlfarth responded that they were 
planning for less townhomes and more single-family homes and it required a change in lot width with the 
townhomes being closer to US HWY 27/441. There will be 314 single-family units and 82 townhome 
units which reduced the density by 24 units overall. 
Richard Wohlfarth further explained their project will be upsizing the water main from 8” to 12” and 
bringing up the 16” main from the south. The development will have dry lines installed for future reuse 
water from Lady Lake when an agreement is made between the municipalities. 
The motion to approve was made by Vice Chair Dicus and seconded by Board Member Burch. Passed 
unanimously.  
 
B.  Spring Lake Road – Planned Unit Development (Alternate Key: 1284368)   

 
The applicant, Alex Stringfellow of Stringfellow Planning, on behalf of the owner, Southwinds 
Commercial, LTD.  The proposed development, located at 2307 Spring Lake Road, consists of 14.10 + 
acres. A total of 2.10 +/- acres [of undevelopable] wetlands and the remaining 12 +/- acres to the south of 
the wetlands will be developed for multi-family residential uses. Current future land use allows up to 4 
single family dwelling units per acre in the northern 1/3 of the property, and 15 dwelling units per acre in 
the southern 2/3 of the property.  
 
There are 36 one-story villas and 56 dwellings in two-story apartments for a total of 92 units and an 
overall gross density of 7.67 units/acre.  The proposed density within the MFHD land use is 10.08 
units/acre. It should be noted that no structures are proposed within the SFMD land use as it will be 
utilized for stormwater and buffers. Access for the development would occur from Spring Lake Road via 
a proposed dual boulevard. 
 
There are five (5) unit types being proposed. Unit type 1 consists of 2-bedroom apartments, with a net living 
area of 1,031 square feet. Forty (40) of these units are proposed. Unit type 2 consists of 2-bedroom 



 
apartments with a net living area of 1,117 square feet, and eight (8) units of this type are proposed. Unit type 
3 consists of 3-bedroom apartments with a net living area of 1,209 square feet, and eight (8) units of this type 
are proposed. Unit type 4 consists of 1-bedroom villas with a net living area of 777 square feet, of which 
twenty-four (24) units are proposed. Unit type 5 consists of 2-bedroom villas with a net living area of 1,117 
square feet, of which twelve (12) units are proposed. The maximum building height is 35’. No garages are 
proposed for the villa units. Parking is proposed in the adjacent parking lot or on street parking. 
 
Alex Stringfellow stated that there will be a fence on the eastern and western perimeter of the property 
and that the project was exempt from Lake County for a traffic study because the estimated trips per hour 
during peak time was below the threshold required for a Traffic Impact Analysis. 
 
Marc Gauthier stated the stairwells for the second floor will be enclosed and not visible from the street. 

Ryan (Citizen of Fruitland Park) expressed concern over preserving the history of Spring Lake Road. 
Michael Rank of LPG responded that the City is in the process of updating the Comprehensive Plan with 
the goal of a roadmap to promote growth with preservation in mind. 

Vice Chair Dicus asked about the purpose of the one bedroom/one bathroom models and Marc Gauthier 
responded that the market indicated there was a need for more of this type of housing. 

Vice Chair Dicus asked about the plausibility of upgrading Spring Lake Road leading to their project and 
inquired whether the road was a city or county road. Michael Rankin responded that it is a county road 
and Lake County Public Works has reviewed this project and the applicant will be required to pay road 
impact fees. 

The motion to approve was made by Board Member Burch and seconded by Vice Chair Dicus. Passed 
unanimously.  

 
BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS: 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 
This section is reserved for members of the public to bring up matters of concern or opportunities for 
praise. Note: Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114 and the City of Fruitland Park’s Public Participation Policy 
adopted by Resolution 2013-023, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be 
heard on propositions before the Planning and Zoning Board. Pursuant to Resolution 2013-023, public 
comments are limited to three minutes. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 6:44 PM 

 
 





 
 

Resolution 2023 -  Page 1 of 4 
DNR Realty Trust, LLC Variance 

 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-045 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK, 
FLORIDA, GRANTING A VARIANCE TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION 
(LDR) REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO LANDSCAPE AREA AT THE END OF PARKING 
ROW, AND PERTAINING TO WATER MAIN SIZE OF 10” TO 8” ON THE SUBJECT 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2600 US HWY. 441/27 AND OWNED BY DNA REALTY TRUST, 
LLC, PROVIDING FOR AN EXPIRATION DATE; PROVIDING FOR SCRIVENER’S 
ERRORS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, DNA Realty Trust, LLC, owner has petitioned for variances for property located at 2600 
US Hwy. 441/27, in the City of Fruitland Park, Florida; and  
 
WHEREAS, the owner requests a variance to the following LDR requirement which requires commercial 
loading spaces at a minimum of 12’ x 25’: 
 

• Chapter 162, Section 162.050(b) The minimum size of a loading space is 12’ x 25’. 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed loading spaces are 10’ x 25’ are of sufficient width to provide for 
loading/unloading of vehicles typically associated with mini-warehousing. 
 
WHEREAS, the owner requests a variance to the following LDR requirement which requires a 200 
square foot planting area at the end of the parking row: 
 

• Chapter 164, Section 164.030(a)(2) Vehicle Use Area provides a landscape area shall be provided 
at the end of all parking rows and will be a minimum of 200 square feet and shall contain a 
minimum of one approved canopy tree, five shrubs and ground cover or grass. 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed vehicle use area within the rear of the building consisting of five (5) parking 
spaces will be entirely screened from public view; and  
 
WHEREAS, the owner requests a variance to the following LDR requirement which requires a fire 
hydrant to be installed on a 10” water main: 
 

• Chapter 159, Section 159.020(e)(7) Design Standards.  All system designs shall conform to 
recommended standards and accepted engineering practices.  Table 159-1 requires a fire hydrant 
to be installed on a 10” water main for warehouse/industrial buildings. 

 
WHEREAS, the city does not have a 10” water main available to the subject site and the existing water 
main is 8”.  Table 159-1 includes a note which states “In those portions of the city where the existing 
water mains cannot meet the above requirements, other building specific measures can be used to reduce 
fire flow.  Section 159.020(e) Fire Hydrants states “Fire hydrants shall not be installed on any water main 
of less than six inches (6”) inside diameter.  Number of hydrants and placement shall also be in 
compliance with NFPA1; and  
 
WHEREAS, this request has met the public notice requirements set forth in Chapter 168 of the 
City of Fruitland Park Land Development Regulations; and 
 

Return to: 
City Clerk 
City of Fruitland Park 
506 W. Berckman St. 
Fruitland Park, FL  34131 



 
 

Resolution 2023 -  Page 2 of 4 
DNR Realty Trust, LLC Variance 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered the petition in accordance with standards for the 
granting of variances contained in Chapter 168, City of Fruitland Park Land Development Regulations 
and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA, as follows: 
 
1. The City Commission has determined that a loading space size of 10’ x 25’ is not detrimental to 
the character of the area or inconsistent with the trends of development in the area. 
 
2. The City Commission has determined that providing  10’ x 25’ loading spaces does not and will 
not have an unduly adverse effect on surrounding property. 
 
3. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the Property which are not 
applicable to other land and structures. 
 
4. A variance from the existing code for the provision of a loading spaces is the minimum variance 
to accommodate the Owner’s request. 
 
5. The City Commission has further determined that the variance is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan for the City of Fruitland Park and Code, and will not adversely affect the public 
interest. 
 
6. The variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens 
of the City of Fruitland Park.  
 
7. The City Commission has determined that providing no landscape island at the end of the vehicle 
use area is not detrimental to the character of the area or inconsistent with the trends of development in 
the area. 
 
8. The City Commission has determined that providing no landscape island at the end of the vehicle 
use area in the rear of the building and adjacent to the boat/RV storage area which is completely screened 
from public view does not and will not have an unduly adverse effect on surrounding property. 
 
9. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the Property which are not 
applicable to other land and structures. 
 
10. A variance from the existing code for the provision of a landscape island at the end of the vehicle 
use area is the minimum variance to accommodate the Owner’s request. 
 
11. The City Commission has further determined that the variance is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan for the City of Fruitland Park and Code, and will not adversely affect the public 
interest. 
 
12. The variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens 
of the City of Fruitland Park.  
 
13. The City Commission has determined that connection of the fire hydrant to the existing 8” water 
main is not detrimental to the character of the area. 
 
14. The City Commission has determined that connection of the fire hydrant to the existing 8” water 
main does not and will not have an unduly adverse effect on surrounding property. 
 



 
 

Resolution 2023 -  Page 3 of 4 
DNR Realty Trust, LLC Variance 

15. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the Property which are not 
applicable to other land and structures. 
 
16. A variance from the existing code for the provision of fire hydrants on a 10” water main to an 8” 
water main is the minimum variance to accommodate the Owner’s request. 
 
17. The City Commission has further determined that the variance is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan for the City of Fruitland Park and Code, and will not adversely affect the public 
interest. 
 
18. The variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens 
of the City of Fruitland Park.  
 
19. The petition for variance filed by DNR Realty Trust, LLC for property located at 2600 US Hwy. 
441/27, in the City of Fruitland Park, Florida, more particularly described as: 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 AND THE SOUTH 70 FEET OF LOT 6, BLOCK B, 
ZEPHYR LAKE SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT 
BOOK 11, PAGE 78, PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
TOGETHER WITH A 40 FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND BEING THE ABANDONED FORMER 
ATLANTIC COASTLINE RAILROAD, LYING WEST OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED 
PROPERTY:  
 
LOTS 1, 2, 4, 5, THE WEST 1/2 OF LOT 3 AND THE SOUTH 70  FEET OF LOT 6, BLOCK B, 
ZEPHYR LAKE SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT 
BOOK 11, PAGE 78, PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
is GRANTED as follows: 
 

1. Variance to Chapter 162, Section 162.050(b) Loading Space Size from 12’ x 25’ to 10’ x 25’ 
 
2. Variance to Chapter 164, Section 164.030(a)(2) Vehicle Use Area.  No 200 square feet 

landscaped area shall be required in the rear of the building.  In lieu of the vehicle landscaped 
area the Owner shall install a front building perimeter landscaping area a minimum of three feet 
(3’) wide with an average of five feet (5’) wide to be planted which would be 3 understory trees, 
28 shrubs and groundcover for every 350 square feet of planting area. Plantings shall comply with 
the landscaping code. 

 
3. Variance to Chapter 159, Section 159.020(e)(7) Design Standards.  Allow a fire hydrant to be 

installed on an 8” water main instead of the required 10” water main for warehouse/industrial 
buildings. 

 
4. Scrivener’s errors in the legal description may be corrected without a public hearing or at public 

meeting, by re-recording the original resolution or a certified copy of the resolution and attaching 
the correct legal description. 
 

5. This variance shall become effective immediately on its approval and adoption by the City 
Commission of the City of Fruitland Park, Florida. 

 
PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Commission of the City of Fruitland Park, 
Lake County, Florida, this ______ day of ________, 2023. 
         



 
 

Resolution 2023 -  Page 4 of 4 
DNR Realty Trust, LLC Variance 

 
______________________________________   
Chris Cheshire, Mayor 
City of Fruitland Park, Florida   
 
 
ATTEST:       
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_____________________________   ________________________________ 
Esther Coulson, CMC, City Clerk   Anita Geraci-Carver, City Attorney  
 
Vice-Mayor Gunter             ______ (Yes), ______ (No), ______ (Abstained), ______ (Absent) 
Commissioner DeGrave      ______ (Yes), ______ (No), ______ (Abstained), ______ (Absent) 
Commissioner Mobilian      ______ (Yes), ______ (No), ______ (Abstained), ______ (Absent) 
Commissioner Bell              ______ (Yes), ______ (No), ______ (Abstained), ______ (Absent) 
Mayor Cheshire                   ______ (Yes), ______ (No), ______ (Abstained), ______ (Absent) 
 
 
Passed First Reading ___________ 
       (SEAL) 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC
HEARING

RESOLUTION 2023-045

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COMMISSION OF THE CITY
O F  F R U I T L A N D  P A R K ,
FLORIDA,  GRANTING A
VARIANCE TO THE LAND
D E V E L O P M E N T
R E G U L A T I O N  ( L D R )
R E Q U I R E M E N T S
P E R T A I N I N G  T O
LANDSCAPE AREA AT THE
END OF PARKING ROW, AND
PERTAINING TO WATER
MAIN SIZE OF 10” TO 8” ON
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 2600 US HWY.
441/27 AND OWNED BY DNA
R E A L T Y  T R U S T ,  L L C ,
P R O V I D I N G  F O R  A N
E X P I R A T I O N  D A T E ;
P R O V I D I N G  F O R
SCRIVENER’S ERRORS; AND
P R O V I D I N G  F O R  A N
E F F E C T I V E  D A T E .

RESOLUTION 2023-052

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COMMISSION OF THE CITY
O F  F R U I T L A N D  P A R K ,
FLORIDA, GRANTING MAJOR
SITE PLAN APPROVAL WITH
CONDITIONS TO ALLOW
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A
S T O R A G E  F A C I L I T Y
INCLUDING AN OFFICE FOR
A TOTAL OF 93,986 SQUARE
F E E T  C O N S I S T I N G  O F
APPROXIMATELY MULTIPLE
BUILDINGS AND RV/BOAT
S T O R A G E  S P A C E S ;
P R O V I D I N G  F O R
CONDITIONS; AUTHORIZING
THE CITY MANAGER TO
ISSUE A NOTICE OF SITE
PLAN APPROVAL UPON
C O M P L E T I O N  O F  A L L
C O N D I T I O N S ;  A N D
P R O V I D I N G  F O R  A N
E F F E C T I V E  D A T E .

The proposed Resolutions will
be considered at the following
public meetings:

Planning & Zoning Board
Thursday, September 21, 2023

@ 6:00 p.m.
City Commission Reading

Thursday, October 12, 2023 @
6:00 p.m.

The public meetings will be held
in the Commission Chambers
located at City Hall, 506 West
Berckman Street, Fruitland
P a r k  F L  3 4 7 3 1 .  T h e s e
meetings are open to the public
and hearings may be continued
a s  d e t e r m i n e d  b y  t h e
commission from time to time to
a  t ime/da te  cer ta in .  The
proposed Resolut ions and
metes  and  bounds  lega l
description of property may be
inspected by the public during
normal working hours at City
Hall. For further information call
352-360-6727.  In teres ted
parties may appear at the
meetings and will be heard with
respec t  to  the  p roposed
reso lu t ion .

A person who decides to
appeal any decision made by
any board, agency or council
with respect to any matter
considered at such meeting or
hearing, will need a record of
the proceedings. For such
purposes, any such person may
need to ensure that a verbatim
record of the proceedings is
made, which includes the
testimony and evidence upon
which the appeal is based
(Florida Statues, 286.0105).
Persons  w i th  d isab i l i t i es
n e e d i n g  a s s i s t a n c e  t o
participate in any of these
proceedings should contact
Esther Coulson, City Clerk at
(352) 360-6790 at least 48
hours before the date of the
scheduled hearing.

#1148371 September 14, 2023
September 29, 2023







  1 

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK 
STAFF REPORT BY LPG URBAN & REGIONAL PLANNERS, INC. 

 
SITE PLAN AND VARIANCES 

 
Owner:   DNA Realty Trust, LLC 
 
Applicant: DNA Realty Trust, LLC 
 
General Location: 2600 US Hwy 441/27, at the intersection of Cook Drive and 

US-441 
 
Number of Acres: 7.07 ± acres  
 
Existing Zoning: Industrial 
 
Existing Land Use: Industrial 
 
Date: August 23, 2023 
 
Description of Project 
 
The subject property is 7.07 acres and consists of four parcels, a northern parcel (Alt Key 
2919531), a southern parcel (Alt Key 2919469), and two parcels in between (Alt Key 2919523 
and Alt Key 2919507).  A single story 781 square foot manufactured office exists on the 
southern parcel (Alt Key 2919469). The proposed major site plan is to construct a 93,205 SF 
storage facility including an office for a total of 93,986 square feet on the northern portion of 
the site, along with associated loading, parking, and stormwater management areas. The 
building sizes proposed to be built are 76,795 square feet, 6,150 square feet, 6,160 square feet, 
and 4,100 square feet, along with an office and forty-six (41) RV/boat storage spaces. 
 
The max ISR is 75%, maximum FAR is .50. The minimum lot size is 30,000 square feet and 200’ 
roadway frontage. The required minimum open space is 25%, and setbacks are 50’ for front, 
and 25’ for side and rear. 
 

 Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Land Use 
North Industrial Industrial 
South Commercial Commercial 
East Commercial Commercial 
West PUD Multi-Family High Density 

 

 
 



  2 

Assessment 

 
Review Comments 
 
Planning staff has consulted City legal counsel and has confirmed that no variance will be 
required for the loading space size. 
 
The applicant states that they are requesting a variance for the landscaping island within the 
RV/boat storage parking area. The applicant indicated and as provided on the site plan, the 
storage area for the parking of RVs and boats cannot be seen by the general public as it is 
located behind the building.  The LDR’s state under Chapter 164, Section 164.030(2) that a 
landscape area shall be provided at the end of all parking rows. The landscaped area will be a 
minimum of 200 square feet and shall contain a minimum of one approved canopy tree, five 
shrubs and ground cover or grass. Staff recommends approval of the variance and approval of 
the condition that the front building perimeter be planted with 3 understory trees, 28 shrubs, 
and groundcover for every 350 square feet of planting area. The planting area would be a 3’ 
strip. This would be considered comparable. 
 
The applicant is also requesting a variance to utilize the 8” water main that is currently available 
in the area, versus a 10” water main. The closest 10-inch main is more than a half-mile away, 
and the closest 12” is about the same distance. There is an 8” main at the site that can serve 
the project, and the cost to install a 10-inch main would not be financially feasible. Staff defers 
to City Engineering on approval of an 8” main. 
 
The rear access drive aisle on the southwest portion of the site only measures 29.4’, however 
the minimum drive aisle width is 30’. Staff recommend reducing a couple of the spaces closest 
to the drive aisle to 9’ X 18’ to meet the minimum 30’ requirement; however, planning staff 
defers to the City Engineer. 
 
 
Recommendation 

 
Staff supports approval of the variance for the landscaping island within the RV/boat storage 
parking area in the event that the applicant provides a minimum of a 3’ and an average of 5’ 
strip of perimeter landscaping along the front of the building containing a minimum of 3 
understory trees, 28 shrubs, and groundcover for every 350 square feet of planting area in lieu 
of the landscaping island.  
 
Staff defers to the City Engineer on the approval of the rear access drive aisle.  Staff defers to 
City Engineer on the approval of an 8” main in lieu of a 10” main.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the site plan subject to the approval of the variances. 
 



  3 

• VARIANCE 1: Requesting variance to Chapter 164, Section 164.030(a)(2) Vehicle Use 
Area provides a landscape area shall be provided at the end of all parking rows and will be a 
minimum of 200 square feet and shall contain a minimum of one approved canopy tree, five 
shrubs and ground cover or grass. 

 
1) Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 

building involved, and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in 
the same zoning district; 
 
RESPONSE:  The applicant has provided the following:  The location of the five (5) 
parking spaces designated in the RV/Boat storage area will not be seen from any 
direction due to the layout of the buildings surrounding the RV/Boat storage area.  
Neither the RV/Boats nor any staff/customer vehicles parked in those five (5) spaces 
will be seen from outside the project.  Thus any landscaping planted adjacent to those 
five spaces will not be seen either. 
 
  

2) The special conditions and circumstances are not the results of actions of the applicant 
and/or registered property owner; 

 
RESPONSE:  The applicant has provided the following:  The layout of most storage 
facilities provides a secure area contained inside of either buildings or perimeter 
fencing.  The layout of this facility is consistent with other storage facilities within the 
City of Fruitland Park. 

 
3) Literal interpretation and enforcement of the Land Development Code regulations 

would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the 
same zoning district under the terms of the Land Development Code, and would work 
unnecessary undue hardship on the applicant; 

 
RESPONSE:  The applicant has provided the following:  Literal interpretation of the 
code would require landscaping internal to the development without adequate 
irrigation to maintain such landscaping and would place the landscaping in an area 
that does not provide any aesthetic enhancement to the project, the 
Owner/Customers, surrounding property owners, nor the general public. 

 
4) Granting of the variance request will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 

that is denied by the Land Development Code to other lands, buildings or structures in 
the same zoning district; and 

 
RESPONSE:  The applicant has provided the following:  We are providing enhanced 
landscaping in front of the building which exceeds the landscaping that would have 
been required in the parking area.  The City Planner recommended a 3’ wide landscape 
planted area.  We are providing a 5’ wide area which exceeds the recommendation.  



  4 

 
5) The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of 

the Land Development Code, and will not be injurious to the surrounding properties or 
detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
RESPONSE: The applicant provided the following:  The intent of the Code is to provide 
enhanced aesthetics to the general public.  By relocating this landscaping to the front 
of the building, the enhanced aesthetics can be enjoyed by adjacent property owners 
and the general public. 
 
 

VARIANCE 2: Waiver to allow fire hydrant to be installed on the 8” water main.  
 

1) Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 
building involved, and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in 
the same zoning district; 
 
RESPONSE:  The applicant provided the following:  Special conditions exist because the 
City does not have a 10” water main in the area. 
  

2) The special conditions and circumstances are not the results of actions of the applicant 
and/or registered property owner; 

 
RESPONSE:  The applicant provided the following:  The special condition was not the 
fault of the registered property owner. 

 
3) Literal interpretation and enforcement of the Land Development Code regulations 

would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the 
same zoning district under the terms of the Land Development Code, and would work 
unnecessary undue hardship on the applicant; 

 
RESPONSE:  The applicant provided the following:  Bringing a larger line to this 
location is not financially feasible for the property owner and the larger line is not 
needed by the City.  The City installed an 8” line in this area as that is what is needed. 

 
4) Granting of the variance request will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 

that is denied by the Land Development Code to other lands, buildings or structures in 
the same zoning district; and 

 
RESPONSE:  The applicant provided the following:  An 8” line is adequate to provide 
the necessary fire flow.  The code indicates a 10” line is required for warehousing and 
industrial uses, however this project is a mini-warehouse which is significantly 
different than an Industrial Warehouse facility.  

 



  5 

5) The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of 
the Land Development Code, and will not be injurious to the surrounding properties or 
detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
RESPONSE:  The applicant provided the following:  The 8” line is existing and is already 
serving other existing properties in the area.  The 8” line is adequate to service this 
use. 

 
 























RESOLUTION 2023-052 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA, GRANTING MAJOR SITE PLAN 
APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS TO ALLOW FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF A STORAGE FACILITY INCLUDING AN 
OFFICE FOR A TOTAL OF 93,986 SQUARE FEET CONSISTING 
OF APPROXIMATELY MULTIPLE BUILDINGS AND RV/BOAT 
STORAGE SPACES; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ISSUE A NOTICE OF 
SITE PLAN APPROVAL UPON COMPLETION OF ALL 
CONDITIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, DNA Realty Trust, LLC filed an application for Major Site Plan Approval to 
allow for construction of a storage facility and RV/boat storage area on real property 
located at 2600 US Hwy 441/27, at the intersection of Cook Drive and US-441, Fruitland 
Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Fruitland Park has considered 
the application in accordance with the Land Development Regulations for Major Site Plan 
Approval in Chapter 160 of the Land Development Regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Fruitland Park has considered the 
application in accordance with the Land Development Regulations for Major Site Plan 
Approval in Chapter 160 of the Land Development Regulations, subject to conditions; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Granting of Major Site Plan Approval. 
 
The application filed by  DNA Realty Trust, LLC (hereafter referred to as “Applicant”), to 
allow for construction of a storage facility and RV/boat storage spaces on real property 
located at 2600 US Hwy 441/27, Fruitland Park is hereby GRANTED, with conditions, for 
the following described properties: 
 
Alt. Key Numbers: 2919531, 2919523, 2919507 and 2919469 
04-19-24-2175-00B-00400, 04-19-24-2175-00B-00301, 04-19-24-2175-00B-00300, and 
04-19-24-2175-00B-00100 
 (The Properties) 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See attached Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. Conditions of Approval. 
 









Resolution 2022-XX 
Page 5 of 5 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTIES 
 

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 AND THE SOUTH 70 FEET OF LOT 6, BLOCK B, ZEPHYR LAKE 
SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, 
PAGE 78, PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
TOGETHER WITH A 40 FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND BEING THE ABANDONED 
FORMER ATLANTIC COASTLINE RAILROAD, LYING WEST OF THE FOLLOWING 
DESCRIBED PROPERTY:  
 
LOTS 1, 2, 4, 5, THE WEST 1/2 OF LOT 3 AND THE SOUTH 70  FEET OF LOT 6, BLOCK 
B, ZEPHYR LAKE SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 78, PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 



Record and Return to: 
City of Fruitland Park 
506 W. Berckman St 
Fruitland Park, FL 34731 

 
NOTICE OF SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

 
 
TO: DNA Realty Trust LLC    
 P.O. Box 7878     
 Gainesville, GA 30504-7878 
 
You are hereby notified that as set forth in Resolution 2023-0xx site plan approval is GRANTED 
for construction of a 93,986 square feet storage facility including an office for a total of 93,986 
square feet consisting of multiple buildings and RV/boat storage spaces with associated parking, 
stormwater and utility facilities on real property located at 2600 U.S. Hwy 441/27, Fruitland Park, 
on the property more particularly described herein which lies wholly within the city limits of the 
City of Fruitland Park.   
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  
Alt. Key Number: 2919531, 2919523, 2919507, and 2919469 (The Property) 
Parcel ID Nos. 04-19-24-2175-00B-00400, 04-19-24-2175-00B-00301, 04-19-24-2175-00B-
00300, and 04-19-24-2175-00B-00100. 

See attached Exhibit A attached hereto. (the “Property”) 
 
Under penalty of law, the above-referenced property may not be subdivided or split without the 
express written approval of the City Commission of the City of Fruitland Park. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Gary La Venia, City Manager 
City of Fruitland Park 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Esther B. Coulson, City Clerk 
City of Fruitland Park 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Anita Geraci-Carver, City Attorney 
City of Fruitland Park 









Record and Return to:      
City of Fruitland Park 
506 W Berckman St. 
Fruitland Park, FL 34731     

 
NOTICE OF DECLARATION OF UNITY OF TITLE 

 
This Declaration of Unity of Title, made this ____ day of _______________, 2023, by 
DNA Realty Trust LLC, a Florida limited liability company, having an address of P.O. 
Box 7878, Gainesville, GA 30504-7878, hereinafter referred to as the “Declarant” being 
the fee owner of the following described real property located in Lake County, Florida: 
 
Alt. Key Numbers: 2919531, 2919523, and 2919507 
Parcel Id. Numbers:  04-19-24-2175-00B-00400, 04-19-24-2175-00B-00301 and 04-19-
24-2175-00B-00300 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  
 
INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS OF THE 3 PARCELS. 
 
Hereby makes the following declarations of condition, limitation, and restriction on the 
Property, hereinafter to be known and referred to as a Declaration of Unity of Title, as to 
the following particulars: 
 

1. That the afore-described plot of, or combination of separate lots, plots, parcels, 
acreage or portions thereof, shall hereafter be declared to be unified under one 
title as an indivisible building site.  See attached Boundary Survey or Sketch 
and Description.  

2. That the Property shall henceforth be considered as one plot or parcel of land, and 
that no portion thereof shall be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed or devised 
separately except in its entirety as one plot or parcel of land. 

3. The purpose of unity is to unify as one indivisible building site for construction 
thereon.  

Notice of Declaration of Title 
        Page 2 of 3 
 
Declarant further agrees that this Declaration of Unity of Title shall constitute a covenant 
to run with the land, as provided by law, and shall be binding upon the Declarant, its 
successors and assigns, and all parties claiming under such parties until such time as the 
same be released in writing by the City of Fruitland Park, a Florida municipality of the 
State of Florida. Declarant also agrees this Declaration of Unity of Title shall be recorded 
in the Public Records of Lake County, Florida. 




	1. September 2023 Agenda
	2. August 2023 Minutes
	3. Lakeside Storage II Location Map
	4. Revised Variance Resolution 2023-o45 08-24-2023_SDL
	5. 01148371_00000050 (Advert Placeholder)
	6. Variance Justifications
	7. Staff Report_LakesideStorageII_SitePlan_08_23_2023_SDL
	8. Lakeside Storage II Site Plan Revised 08-03-2023_Sealed
	Lakeside Storage II C1.1.pdf
	Lakeside Storage II C1.2
	Lakeside Storage II C2.1
	Lakeside Storage II C3.1
	Lakeside Storage II C4.1
	Lakeside Storage II C5.1
	Lakeside Storage II C5.2
	Lakeside Storage II C6.1
	Lakeside Storage II C6.2
	Lakeside Storage II C6.3

	9. Resolution 2023-XX Major Site Plan Lakeside Storage with conditions
	10. 2023 Notice of Site Plan Approval Major Lakeside Storage II
	11. 22-1044 UNITY OF TITLE REVISED SKETCH & DESCRIPTION 7-17-23
	12. Notice Unity of Title Lakeside Storage II



